
 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2019\2019 05 15\1 2019 05 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 
CULTUS LAKE PARK BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 15, 2019 
7:00 PM 

PARK OFFICE BOARDROOM  
4165 Columbia Valley Highway, Cultus Lake, BC 

 
 (1) CALL TO ORDER 

 
 (2) RESOLUTION TO PROCEED TO CLOSED MEETING (4:00 PM) 

 
  THAT the meeting be closed to the public to consider matters pursuant to the following 

sections of the Community Charter: 
Section 90 (1), (d) security of the property of the municipality; and  
Section 90 (1), (f) law enforcement, if the council considers that disclosure could 
reasonably be expected to harm the conduct of an investigation under or enforcement of 
an enactment; and 
Section 90 (1) (g) (litigation or potential litigation affecting the municipality) of the 
Community Charter.  Should the Board wish to further pursue collection of the lease fee 
payable, it is anticipated that this may require some level of legal representation.  

   
 (3) RECONVENE 
   

Page 1 (4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 (a) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Agenda for the Regular Meeting of  
May 15, 2019; and  

   
  THAT all delegations, reports, correspondence and other information set to the Agenda 

be received. 
   
 (5) DELEGATION  
   
  Sean Reid, KPMG regarding the 2018 Audit Findings Report. 
   
 (6) ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
   

Page 7 (a) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board adopt the minutes of the Regular Meeting held  
April 17, 2019.  

   
Page 19 (b) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board adopt the minutes of the Special Regular Electronic 

Meeting held on April 25, 2019. 
  

001



AGENDA  May 15, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 2 
 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2019\2019 05 15\1 2019 05 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 

   
   
 (7) ADOPTION OF COMMITTEE MINUTES 
   
Page 21 (a) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the minutes of the Operational and Financial 

Core Review Committee held on March 27, 2019.  
   
Page 23  (b) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the minutes of the Operational and Financial 

Core Review Committee held on April 30, 2019. 
   
 (8) FINANCE 
   
 (a) 2018 Draft Financial Statements 
Page 25  • Report dated May 15, 2019 from Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer 
   
  THAT the report from the Manager of Finance regarding the 2018 DRAFT Financial 

Statements be received; and  
   
  THAT the 2018 Financial Statements be approved. 
   

 (9) CORRESPONDENCE 
   
 (a) Cultus Lake Business Association  
Page 47  • Letter dated April 25, 2019 from Bob McCrea, Administrative Officer, Cultus Lake 

Business Association regarding Changes to the Cultus Lake Park Act 
   
 (b) Cultus Lake Business Association 
Page 49  • Letter dated April 25, 2019 from Bob McCrea, Administrative Officer, Cultus Lake 

Business Association regarding Parmenter Sign 
   
 (c) Cultus Lake Aquatic Stewardship Strategy 
Page 53  • Email dated April from Christina Toth, Fraser Basin Council, Assistant Regional 

Manager, Fraser Valley, Cultus Lake Aquatic Stewardship Strategy 
   
 (d) Fraser Valley Regional District – Area H OCP Amendment  
Page 55  • Area H OCP Information Sheet and Open House Banner Ad  
   
 (e) Fraser Valley Regional District – Wood Stove Exchange  
Page 59  • Wood Stove Exchange Program Brochure  
   
 (10) CONSENT AGENDA  
   
Page 61-97  First Quarter Reports 
   
  - Finance  

- Lions Parking 
- Public Works  
- Campground and Cabins  

002



AGENDA  May 15, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 3 
 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2019\2019 05 15\1 2019 05 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 

 
- Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement  
- Fire Department  
- Lease Assignment 

   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the 2019 First Quarter reports for information. 
   
 (11) STAFF REPORTS 
   
 (a) Paddling Parking Pass Report 

Page 99   • Report dated May 15, 2019 from Dave Driediger, Manager of Park Operations 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to extend provisions 

of paddling parking passes to allow for additional parking prior to 10:00 am on weekends and 
statutory holidays. 

   
 
Page 103 
 

(b) Cultus Lake Community School Grade 4/5 Event 
• Report dated May 15, 2019 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator 

   
  THAT the event NOT be considered a “Special Event” and the organizer NOT be required to 

submit a Special Event Application; 
 
This means: 

• THAT the Special Event Application Fee of $100 is not applicable; 
 

• THAT the Rental Fee for 0-100 people of $100 is not applicable; and 
 

• THAT the Refundable Security Deposit of $1,000 is not applicable. 
 
THAT parking fees for Parking Lot A and Lot B be waived for up to 15 parent volunteer vehicles 
from 8 a.m. - 2:30 p.m. on June 6, 2019. 

   
 (c) Lions Cultus Lake Pike Minnow Derby 
Page 105  • Report dated May 15, 2019 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator  
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board waive the parking fees for Parking Lot A for any Lions Cultus 

Lake Pike Minnow Derby participant for the entire day if they park in the lot prior to 9:00 a.m. on 
June 15, 2019; 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board permit one small van to park and camp on Main Beach on 
the sand near Gazebo B from 9 p.m. on June 14, 2019 to 5 a.m. on June 15, 2019 for security 
purposes; 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board permits the Lions Cultus Lake Pike Minnow Derby to operate 
a concession stand/area at Main Beach on June 15, 2019. 

  

003



AGENDA  May 15, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 4 
 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2019\2019 05 15\1 2019 05 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 

   
 (d) Cultus Lake Community School’s Beach Day 
Page 107  • Report dated May 15, 2019 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator 
   
  THAT the event NOT be considered a “Special Event” and the organizer NOT be required to 

submit a Special Event Application; 
 
This means: 

• THAT the Special Event Application Fee of $100 is not applicable; 
 

• THAT the Rental Fee for 200+ people of $500 is not applicable; and 
 
THAT the Refundable Security Deposit of $1,000 is not applicable. 

   
 (e) Cultus Lake Day 
Page 109  • Report dated May 15, 2019 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve a pancake breakfast at the Cultus Lake Fire Hall 

from 8:30 a.m. to 10 a.m. on June 22, 2019, as approved in previous years; 
 

  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the need to register license plates for free parking 
for parade floats and parade vehicles in the Plaza Parking Lot, near the barn, from 9:30 a.m. to 
11:15 a.m. on June 22, 2019. 
 

  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve a parade from 11 a.m. to 12 p.m. on June 22, 2019, 
beginning from Sunnyside Boulevard (at Lakeside Beach Club), to 1st Avenue, and ending at 
Main Beach. 
 

  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve free parking in Lot D for up to 100 parade 
participants from 9 a.m. to 11 p.m. on June 22, 2019; 
 

  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve free parking in Lot B for event vendors from 9 a.m. 
to 11 p.m. on June 22, 2019; 
 

  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve Cultus Lake Park Commercial Leaseholder food 
vendors and non-leaseholder food vendors to serve the public at the Main Beach grassy area 
from 11:30 a.m. to 9:30 p.m. on June 22, 2019; 
 

  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve a beverage garden at the Main Beach grassy area 
from 11:30 a.m. to 9:30 p.m. on June 22, 2019; 
 

  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve a children’s fun area at the Main Beach grassy area 
from 11:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. on June 22, 2019; 
 

  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve pony rides at the Main Beach area from 1 p.m. to 5 
p.m. on June 22, 2019; and 
 

  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve fireworks at Main Beach for approximately 15 to 30 
minutes between 10 p.m. and 11 p.m. on June 22, 2019. 
 

   
   

004



AGENDA  May 15, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 5 
 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2019\2019 05 15\1 2019 05 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 

   
 (12) REPORTS BY COMMISSIONERS 
   
 (a) Recommendations from the Operational and Financial Core Review Committee  
Page 113  • Report dated May 15, 2019 from David Renwick, Chair, Operational and Financial Core 

Review Committee 
   
  THAT the Operational and Financial Core Review Committee request the Cultus Lake Park 

Board to direct the Chief Administrative Officer to refer the Commercial Leases of Main Beach 
Boat Rentals, Cultus Lake Marina and Rentals, Frostys and Ministry of Forests  for a legal 
opinion on Landlord responsibilities regarding building and infrastructure maintenance. 
 
THAT the Operational and Financial Core Review Committee request the Cultus Lake Park 
Board to direct the Chief Administrative Officer to compile an inventory of the Plaza building 
and infrastructure based on the Commercial Leases references to Landlord responsibilities. 
 
THAT the Operational and Financial Core Review Committee request the Cultus Lake Park 
Board to direct the Chief Administrative Officer to investigate the cost to hire a Commercial 
Inspector to access the condition and maintenance requirements of the compiled inventory of 
the Plaza building and infrastructure. 
 
THAT the Operational and Financial Core Review Committee request the Cultus Lake Park 
Board to direct the Chief Administrative Officer to confirm that the New York Corned Beef 
Connection installed a ventilation system for their commercial oven, as per their lease. 

   
 (13) PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
   
 (14) ADJOURNMENT 

 
  THAT the Regular Meeting of the Cultus Lake Park Board held on May 15, 2019 be adjourned. 

 

005



006



 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2019\2019 05 15\2019 04 17 regular minutes edited.docx 

  
CULTUS LAKE PARK BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 

Wednesday, April 17, 2019 
CULTUS LAKE PARK OFFICE BOARDROOM  
4165 Columbia Valley Highway, Cultus Lake, BC 

 

  

Present Commissioner J. Lamb – Chair 
Commissioner D. Bauer – Vice Chair 
Commissioner D. Renwick 
Commissioner C. Smit 

  
Staff Chief Administrative Officer – B. Bryant 
 Manager of Finance – E. Lee 

Manager of Park Operations – D. Driediger 
 Acting Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement – J. Spencer 
 Executive Assistant – R. Litchfield 

 
Absent  Commissioner L. Payeur 
  

(1) CALL TO ORDER   
 
The Chair called the meeting to order at 5:31 pm. 
 

(2) RESOLUTION TO PROCEED TO CLOSED MEETING 
  
4335-19 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Smit 

 
THAT the meeting be closed to the public to consider matters pursuant to the following 
sections of the Community Charter: 
Section 90(1), (d) security of the property of the municipality; and  
Section 90 (1), (k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed provision of a 
municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the view of the council, could 
reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality if they were held in public. 

  
(3) RECONVENE 

 
The meeting reconvened at 7:00 pm. 

007



MINUTES  April 17, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 2 
 

 

  
(4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

  

4336-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer 
 

 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve amending the Agenda for the Regular Meeting of 
April 17, 2019 by replacing under Section 9, Staff Reports; 9 (g), Ride for Water Special Event; 
and  
 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Agenda as amended; and  
 
THAT all delegations, reports, correspondence and other information set to the Agenda be 
received. 

 

  

 CARRIED 
  

(5) ADOPTION OF BOARD MINUTES 
  
4337-19 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Smit 
  

 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board adopt the minutes of the Regular Meeting held  
March 20, 2019. 

  
 CARRIED 
  

(6) ADOPTION OF COMMITTEE MINUTES 
  
4338-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Renwick 
  

 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the minutes of the Community Events and 
Engagement Committee held on February 27, 2019.  

  
 CARRIED 
  
4339-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer 
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the minutes of the Community Events and 

Engagement Committee held on March 13, 2019 and March 14, 2019. 
  
 CARRIED 
  
4340-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer 
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the minutes of the Commercial Leaseholder 

Committee held on March 13, 2019. 
  
 CARRIED 
  
4341-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Renwick  
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the minutes of the Commercial Leaseholder 

Committee held on March 27, 2019. 
  

CARRIED 

  
008



MINUTES  April 17, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 3 
 

  
(7) CORRESPONDENCE 

  
(a) Cultus Lake Business Association  

  Letter dated March 16, 2019 from Bob McCrea, Administrative Officer, Cultus Lake 
Business Association regarding Electric Highway Traffic Signs 

  
(8) BYLAWS  

  
(a) Cultus Lake Park Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1099, 2017, Amendment    

Bylaw No. 1138, 2019 
  

4342-19 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Smit  
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Sunnyside 

Campground Bylaw No. 1099, 2017, Amendment Bylaw No. 1138, 2019. 
  
 CARRIED 
  

(b) Cultus Lake Park The Cabins at Cultus Lake Park Bylaw No. 1118, 2018, Amendment 
Bylaw No. 1139, 2019 

  
4343-19 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Smit  

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park The Cabins at 

Cultus Lake Park Bylaw No. 1118, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 1139, 2019. 
 

 CARRIED 
  

(9) STAFF REPORTS 
  

(a) Approval of March 20, 2018 Special Regular Electronic Minutes 
  Report dated April 17, 2019 from Bonny Bryant, Chief Administrative Officer 
  March 20, 2018 Special Regular Electronic Minutes 
  

4344-19 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Renwick 
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the March 20, 2018 Special Regular Electronic 

Minutes. 
  

 CARRIED 
  

(b) Star Nation Canoe Club Canoe Storage  
 Report dated April 17, 2019 from Bonny Bryant, Chief Administrative Officer 
 Site location picture  
 Email dated March 31, 2019 from Theresa Warbus 
 

4345-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Renwick 
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board refer the Star Nation Canoe Club report back to the Chief 

Administrative Officer for more information.  
 

 CARRIED 
 

  
009



MINUTES  April 17, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 4 
 

  

  
(c) Budget Increase for Promotion/Communications re: Parking/Weekdays at Cultus Lake & 

Community Policing Event 
  Report dated April 17, 2019 from Bonny Bryant, Chief Administrative Officer 
  

4346-19 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Renwick  
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve a budget increase of $3,000 for advertising and 

promotion in order to increase weekday visits and parking revenue at Cultus Lake Park and to 
hold a public event to launch Community Policing at Cultus Lake Park. 

  
 CARRIED 
  

(d) Enrollment in the Local Government Bylaw Notice Enforcement Act 
  Report dated April 17, 2019 from Bonny Bryant, Chief Administrative Officer 

  
4347-19 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Renwick  
  

 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve that the Chief Administrative Officer write the Ministry 
of Attorney General requesting that Cultus Lake Park be enrolled in the Bylaw Notice 
Enforcement Regulation, under the Local Government Bylaw Notice Enforcement Act in order to 
practice bylaw adjudication. 

  
 CARRIED 

  
(e) Charitable Donations Policy and Procedures 

 Report dated April 17, 2019 from Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer 
 Charitable Donation Policy  
 Revenue Canada requirements 

 

  
4348-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer 

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board review and approve the Charitable Donation Policy. 
  
 CARRIED 
  

(f) Paddling Parking Pass 

 Report dated April 17, 2019 from Dave Driediger, Manager of Park Operations 
 

 

4349-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to continue to exclude 

the Sunnyside Blvd. residential overflow parking area from both $100 annual passes for 
Chilliwack and Electoral Area H residents and $200 annual passes for non-residents as well as 
$50 seasonal paddling parking passes.   
 
CARRIED  

010



MINUTES  April 17, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 5 
 

  

  
4350-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer 

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to continue to issue 

$50 seasonal paddling parking passes as set out in Option 3: Extend provisions of paddling 
passes to allow for additional parking prior to 10:00 am weekends and statutory holidays; and  

  

 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board refer this back to the Chief Administrative Officer to bring 
this back to the next Board meeting with more details and to relax the enforcement on 
weekends prior to 10:00 am. 

  
 CARRIED 
 Commissioner Renwick voted in opposition. 
  

(g) Ride for Water Bike Race – Special Event  
 Report dated April 17, 2019 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator 
 Attached maps of bike course and routes 

  
4351-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer 

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Special Event Application for Ride for Water held 

on May 4, 2019, provided the Special Occasion License to operate a Beverage Garden be 
granted by the BC Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch and that all bike use within the Park 
is restricted to non-grassed roadway areas. 

  
 CARRIED 
  

4352-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the use of Helm’s Kitchen as the May 4, 2019 Ride 

for Water food vendor. 
  

 DEFEATED  
 Chair Lamb, Commissioner Bauer and Smit voted in opposition. 
  

4353-19 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Smit 
  

 THAT parking fees for 10 spots in Parking Lot B on May 4, 2019 be waived for Ride for Water 
organizers. 

  

 CARRIED  
  

4354-19 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Renwick  
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board allow the food vendor at the event provided that the 

commercial leaseholders (Lakeside Beach Club and Main Beach Boat Rentals & Concession) 
be consulted and advise them that they are not interested in providing the event participants with 
food . 
 

 CARRIED 

011



MINUTES  April 17, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 6 
 

  

  

(h) Chilliwack School District Cross Country Run- Special Event  
  Report dated April 17, 2019 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator 

 
4355-19 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Smit 

  
  THAT the event NOT be considered a “Special Event” and the organizer NOT be 

required to submit a Special Event Application; 
 
This means: 

 THAT the Special Event Application Fee of $100 is not applicable (as in previous 
years); 

 
 THAT the Rental Fee for 200+ people of $500 is not applicable (as in previous 

years); 
 

 THAT the Refundable Security Deposit of $1,000 is not applicable (as in previous 
years); and 

 

 THAT the Comprehensive General Liability Insurance of $5,000,000 is not 
applicable (as in previous years). 

 
 

 CARRIED 
  

4356-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer 
  
 THAT parking fees for Parking Lot A and Lot B be waived for volunteers and parents attending 

the Chilliwack School District Cross Country Run from 2:00 p.m. - 5:30 p.m. on May 8, 2019. 
  
 CARRIED 
  

4357-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board request that the Chilliwack School Board provide a copy of 

their Comprehensive General Liability Insurance in the amount of $5,000,000 for the Chilliwack 
School District Cross Country Run. 

  
 CARRIED 
  

(i) Cultus Lake Water Sports Festival - Special Event 
 Report dated April 17, 2019 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator 
 Letter dated March 14, 2019 from Cecilia Lockerby 

  
4358-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  

  
 THAT the parking fees in Lot B for the duration of the 2019 Cultus Lake Water Sports Festival 

Special Event, May 31 to June 2, 2019, be waived. 
 

 CARRIED 
 Commissioner Smit voted in opposition. 

012



MINUTES  April 17, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 7 
 

  

  
4359-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Water Sports Festival organizers be permitted to collect parking fees at 

Lot B (to offset expenses) for the duration of the event from May 31 to June 2, 2019. 
 

 CARRIED  
 Commissioner Smit voted in opposition. 
  

4360-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  
 THAT the requirement for the $1,000 security deposit for the 2019 Cultus Lake Water Sports 

Festival be reduced to $500. 
  
 CARRIED 
  

4361-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  
 THAT the Special Event Application fee of $100 for the 2019 Cultus Lake Water Sports Festival 

be waived. 
 

 CARRIED 
 Commissioner Smit voted in opposition. 
  

4362-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  
 THAT the Special Event Rental Fees of $1,500 for the 2019 Cultus Lake Water Sports Festival 

be waived. 
  

 CARRIED  
 

4363-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  

 THAT the Swim Line Removal and Replacement fee of $500 for the 2019 Cultus Lake Water 
Sports Festival be waived and the main swim lines be put out after the event. 
 

 CARRIED 
  

4364-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  

 THAT the Garbage Bin and Admin fees for the 2019 Cultus Lake Water Sports Festival be 
waived. 
 

 CARRIED  
Commissioner Smit voted in opposition. 

  
4365-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  

  

 THAT food vendors be permitted at the 2019 Cultus Lake Water Sports Festival (names of 
vendors to be provided one week prior to the event) as long as they do not park on tree roots. 
 

 CARRIED  
Commissioner Smit voted in opposition. 

013



MINUTES  April 17, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 8 
 

  

  
4366-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  

  

 THAT food vendor fees of $100 per vendor per day for the 2019 Cultus Lake Water Sports 
Festival be waived. 
 

 CARRIED  
Commissioner Smit voted in opposition. 

  
4367-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  

  

 THAT participants of the 2019 Water Sports Festival be permitted to camp at Main Beach as in 
past years.  
 

 CARRIED  
  

4368-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  

 THAT portable toilets be required at the 2019 Water Sports Festival and the fees for the 
portable toilets be waived. 
 

 CARRIED  
Commissioner Smit voted in opposition 

  
4369-19 Moved by: Commissioner Renwick  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  

  

  THAT Cultus Lake Park provides the Cultus Lake Water Sports Festival with all funds received 
in meters in Parking Lot B from May 31 to June 2, 2019 (to offset expenses). 

  
 CARRIED  
  

(10) REPORTS BY COMMISSIONERS 
  

(a) Recommendations from the Community Events and Engagement Committee  
 • Report dated April 17, 2019 from Joe Lamb, Chair, Community Events and Engagement 

Committee 
  

4370-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  
 THAT the Community Events and Engagement Committee request the Cultus Lake Park Board 

approve moving the Farmers Market to the barn at the old Funland site.  
 

 CARRIED 
  
4371-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Renwick  

  
 THAT the Community Events and Engagement Committee request the Cultus Lake Park Board 

to explore the cost to bring the barn at the old Funland site up to market usability. 
  

 CARRIED  

014



MINUTES  April 17, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 9 
 

  

  

(b) Recommendations from the Commercial Leaseholder Committee 
  Report dated April 17, 2019 from Casey Smit, Chair, Commercial Leaseholder Committee 

 
4372-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  

  
 THAT the Commercial Leaseholder Committee requests the Cultus Lake Park Board to contact 

the Fraser Valley Regional District for the removal of the Electoral Area H sign currently located 
along Columbia Valley Highway.  

  

 DEFEATED  
Chair Lamb, Commissioners Renwick and Bauer voted in opposition. 

 Commissioner Smit voted in favor. 
  

4373-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner 
  
 THAT the Commercial Leaseholder Committee requests the Cultus Lake Park Board work 

together with the Cultus Lake Business Association to design and build a new “Welcome to 
Cultus Lake Park” sign. 
 

 LOST FOR WANT OF A SECONDER 
  

4374-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  

 THAT the Commercial Leaseholder Committee requests the Cultus Lake Park Board to have a 
discussion with the Fraser Valley Regional District and let them know that the Cultus Lake 
Business Association is not in support of the dynamic signage placement in the high season. 

  

 DEFEATED  
Chair Lamb, Commissioner Renwick and Bauer voted in opposition. 

  
(c) Recommendations from the Commercial Leaseholder Committee 

  Report dated April 17, 2019 from Casey Smit, Chair, Commercial Leaseholder Committee 
 

4375-19 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
  
 THAT the Commercial Leaseholder Committee requests that there be no pay parking in the 

Plaza parking lot and that there be a 2 (two) hour maximum until 6:00 pm. 
  

 DEFEATED  
Chair Lamb, Commissioner Renwick and Bauer voted in opposition.  
Commissioner Smit voted in favor. 

015



MINUTES  April 17, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 10 
 

  

  

(12) PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
  

 Q: Len Martson, Park Drive, expressed his concerns with respect to the proposed canoe 
storage area in Sunnyside Campground. He noted that the new location is directly across 
from their property and expressed concerns with obstructed views of the lake as well as 
congestion in the area. He noted that the canoes are currently encroaching into one of the 
group sites. With respect to their annual event he suggested that perhaps the Main Beach 
area would be a suitable location. He questioned why local residents and campers were not 
consulted. He asked for clarification on whether this is a gift to the group or will it be a rental 
space. He suggests that the Board continue to store the canoes for this year and 
recommended that an alternate space be considered for next year. 

  
 A: Chair Lamb noted that the Board has referred this item back to staff for further consideration 

with respect to year round storage use. 
  
 Q: Rick Williamson, First Ave. asked if consideration was given to the impact on parking at the 

plaza with reconsideration to relocating the market. 
  
 A: Chair Lamb noted that consideration was given to parking by bringing more traffic and 

business to the local vendors however, may require further consultation with the tenants. 
  
 Q: Bob McCrea, Representative for the Business Association noted that they had contacted the 

Mayor of Chilliwack and the Fraser Valley Regional District (FVRD) to request that their 
input be considered with respect to emergency situations and location of the signs.  

  
 A: Chair Lamb clarified that the City of Chilliwack is not involved with respect to the signage 

that is placed and noted that the FVRD and Ministry of Transportation use this for 
emergency situations and to curb traffic volume to the lake. 

  
 Q: Rick Williamson, First Ave, requested clarification on the occupancy for Sunnyside 

Campground with the approval of the bylaw rate increase this evening.  
 

 A:  Chair Lamb noted that there are sixteen sites vacant on the seasonal side, just over one 
hundred and seventy people on the waitlist. Staff feel confident that the sites will be booked.  

  
 Q: Andrew Steuneberg, Cultus Lake Waterpark, wished to thank the Board for the constructive 

feedback regarding processes and recommendations. He asked for clarity on procedures 
 with respect to policies on concessions and food vendors. He also asked for clarification on 

the level of participation that the Board has when other authorities such as FVRD and the 
Ministry of Transportation suggested input on the wording for signage. He requested the 
Board take into consideration the options for parking for the Farmers Market with respect to 
the parks parking availability and capacity. 

  
 A: Chair Lamb, noted that the Board may wish to address this at the next commercial 

leaseholder meeting and will consult with the businesses on events such as Cultus Lake 
Day and our Christmas event. He clarified that the Board is consulted and notified on the 
signage wording however they are not the decision maker with regards to deployment. He 
clarified that the market is to help support the local businesses by attracting visitors to the 
area and the Board is considering options for parking.  

016



MINUTES  April 17, 2019 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-60 - minutes - board meetings\2019\2019 04 17\2019 04 17 regular minutes edited.docx 
  

  
(13) ADJOURNMENT 

  
4376-19 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer Seconded by: Commissioner Renwick  

 
THAT the Regular Meeting of the Cultus Lake Park Board held on April 17, 2019 be 
adjourned 8:53 pm. 
 
CARRIED  
 
 
I hereby certify the preceding to be a true and correct account of the meeting of the Cultus 
Lake Park Board held April 17, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________                           ____________________________ 
Joe Lamb Bonny Bryant 
Chair Chief Administrative Officer 
          

 

 
 

 

  

017



018



 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2019\2019 05 15\2019 04 25 special electronic regular meeting minutes.docx 

 
CULTUS LAKE PARK BOARD 

SPECIAL REGULAR ELECTRONIC  
MEETING MINUTES 

 
THURSDAY, APRIL 25, 2019 

PARK OFFICE BOARDROOM  
4165 Columbia Valley Highway, Cultus Lake, BC 

 
 

CARRIED 
 
I hereby certify the preceding to be a true and correct account of the Special Electronic 
meeting of the Cultus Lake Park Board held April 25, 2019. 
 
 
 
_____________________________ __________________________ 
Joe Lamb Bonny Bryant   
Chair  Chief Administrative Officer 
  
 

 SPECIAL VOTE BY TELEPHONE POLL  
  
 Section 5 of the Cultus Lake Park Board Procedure Bylaw allows for a Special Vote 

by Telephone Poll in urgent situations.  
 
SPECIAL VOTE BY TELEPHONE OR ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION 

  
4377-19 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Smit 
  
 Cultus Lake Park Board passed the following resolution at the April 25, 2019 Special 

Regular Electronic Meeting: 
 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board pre approve the request from leaseholder of 38 
Lakeshore Drive to allow the transfer of the registered boat lift to the purchaser(s) of 
the leased property; and  
 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board require the new leaseholder(s) to complete the 
applicable registration form for the boat lift within 30 days of the completion of sale.  

  

019



020



021



022



023



024



025



026



027



028



029



030



031



032



033



034



035



036



037



038



039



040



041



042



043



044



045



046



047



048



049



050



051



052



 
 
Apr 15, 2019 
 
Hello everyone, 
 
The Cultus Stewards group made some corrections to the Phase 1 of the Cultus Lake valuation 
study we commissioned last, which the board helped to fund in part last year. The revision was 
required because the writer had used data from the previous 2014 water quality study that was 
incomplete, which made it look like all the septic nutrients were coming from Lindell – the north 
end of the lake had inadvertently been left out of the original nutrient totals. We noticed the 
error, got an updated nutrient table, and made revisions accordingly.  
 
We CLASS wanted to ensure the CLP board members had a correct copy. The literature review 
section is interesting as it shows what other communities found out and did in similar 'natural 
goods and services' valuations of their lakes.  
 
 
We are seeking funds for Phase II, which is going to be the actual survey carried out over two 
years. We hope the Cultus Lake Board will be able to contribute to a portion of that fund. 
Estimated budget is about $120K.  
We will bring you a more detailed proposal in the coming weeks.  
 
Let me know if you have any questions.  
 
Best regards, on behalf of the Cultus Lake Aquatic Stewards,  
 
Christina Toth  
 
--  
Christina Toth 
Fraser Basin Council 
Assistant Regional Manager, Fraser Valley 
Cultus Lake Aquatic Stewardship Strategy – CLASS (Cultus Lake Stewards) 
 
E: ctoth@fraserbasin.bc.ca 
W: www.fraserbasin.bc.ca 
 

053

mailto:cbtoth@fraserbasin.bc.ca
http://www.fraserbasin.bc.ca/


054



I N F O R M A T I O N  S H E E T
AREA H OCP AMENDMENT
Spring/Summer, 2019

About the Official Community Plan
An Official Community Plan (OCP) is a statement of 
objectives and policies to guide local government 
decisions on planning and land use management 
within the area covered by the Plan. In this case, 
the Fraser Valley Regional District is amending the 
existing OCP for the Cultus Lake south area to address 
outstanding zoning, form and character land use 
within Area H previously identified by the community.

The focus of this OCP amendment process is to 
address outstanding land use concerns within Area H 
boundaries previously raised in the south Cultus area.  
Area H land use is still governed within the current 
Area E OCP and thus consolidating the name of the 
OCP into Areas E and H are appropriate. 

Changes to the Cultus Lake South Neighbourhood 
Plan may also be made so that Area H amendments 
meet the needs of stakeholders and the public while 
satisfying the legislative requirements that include:

 » Area E and H title update to accurately reflect 
both areas within the current OCP (housekeeping 
amendment);

 » Community Water provision (Section 7.8.5 
housekeeping amendment);

 » Area H limitations to multi-family zoning (Cultus 
Lake South Neighbourhood Plan);

 » Commercial zoning – existing or contemplated 
designation (Cultus Lake South Neighbourhood 
Plan);

 » Review and revise available area to be used for 
density calculations;

 » Review Form and Character controls and tools; and

 » Any other relevant Area H OCP questions or 
concerns.

These amendments are intended to identify 
community and collective values, provide developers 
and residents with a degree of certainty regarding 
future land use and growth patterns and set 
development conditions in Area H. It is important 
to note that this OCP amendment process does not 
affect area E.

45950 Cheam Avenue. Chilliwack, BC V2P 1N6   www.fvrd.ca  |  planning@fvrd.ca   (604) 702-5000 or 1-800-528-0061

What’s Being Amended in Area H and Why

Boundary Map of Cultus Lake South  
Neighbourhood

055



I N F O R M A T I O N  S H E E T
AREA H OCP AMENDMENT
Page 2

Timeline

Mar/Apr

May/Jun

Jul/Aug

Aug/Sep

Stage 1: Technical Analysis and 
Development

Stage 2: Public and Stakeholder 
Consultations

WE ARE HERE!

Stage 3: Continued Consultations, 
Technical Outcome Analysis and 
Interim Reporting

Stage 4: Bylaw Amendment, 
Readings and Adoption.

Stage 2: Key Consultation Dates and Next Steps

Stakeholder Meetings
 May through June

Public Open House: 
 June 8, 9 am to 11 am
 Columbia Valley Community Centre
 1202 Kosikar Road, Lindell Beach, BC

First Reading: 
 Anticipated in late June

Public Hearing: 
 Anticipated in mid-July

Second and Third Reading 
 Estimated in late-July

OCP Amendment Adoption

Your Opinion Matters
Stay connected with us and provide your comments as we move forward together.

Attend our Public Open House 
June 8, 9 am to 11 am at the
Columbia Valley Community Centre

Email us at planning@fvrd.ca

Visit us online at www.fvrd.ca

Call us at (604)702-5000

Follow us on social media:

www.facebook.com/MyFVRD

45950 Cheam Avenue. Chilliwack, BC V2P 1N6   www.fvrd.ca  |  planning@fvrd.ca   (604) 702-5000 or 1-800-528-0061

@FVRD1

056



C U L T U S  L A K E  S O U T H
AREA H OCP AMENDMENTOpen House

June 8 from 9 am - 11 am
Columbia Valley Community Centre

1202 Kosikar Road

The existing OCP for the Cultus Lake south area is being amended to 
address outstanding zoning, form and character land use within the  
Area H boundary previously identified by the community. 

Visit us online and at our Open House to learn more and share your 
thoughts. Comments can be submitted using our form online or in 
person at the Open House.

Your Opinion Matters!

Complete our  
comment form

www.fvrd.ca
Closes July 15, 2019

Contact
planning@fvrd.ca 

604-702-5000

057



058



059



060



061



062



063



064



065



066



067



068



069



070



071



072



073



074



075



076



077



078



079



080



081



082



083



084



085



086



087



088



089



090



091



092



s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-70 - reports - board meetings\2019\2019 05 15\2019 05 15 fire department first quarter report.docx 

 
 

CULTUS LAKE PARK 
 

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD 
 
DATE:  May 15, 2019 FILE: 0550 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Warren Mazuren 
  Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: 2019 Fire Department First Quarter Report  
 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To provide the Board with information on the activities of the Cultus Lake Volunteer Fire 
Department for the months of January, February and March of 2019. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the 2019 Fire Department First Quarter report for 
information. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The First Quarter of 2019 was about average in call volume to last year’s 14 calls in the final 
quarter. 
 
The transition for FVRD dispatch to E-Comm is now completed. 
 
Engine 1 and Engine 1-2 had their annual MVI’s completed. 
 
The CLVFD continued with maintenance training as required by the Playbook. 
 
24 CLVFD attended and completed the HCP-C training provided by WorksafeT Solutions. 
 
13 CLVFD Attended and completed an IAFF sponsored Hazmat awareness and operations 
course with Instructors Joel Lamaire and Brent Cowx at Mission Fire Hall #1.  Had this training 
not be sponsored by the IAFF the cost per student would have been approximately $1,200.00, 
resulting in a savings of over $15,000! 
 
The CLVFD is updating its Operational Guidelines for 2019 and adding any additional OG’s as 
required. 
 
The CLVFD purchased five new MSA G1 SCBA’s bringing our totals to 17 serviceable SCBA’s 
total. 
  

093



s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-70 - reports - board meetings\2019\2019 05 15\2019 05 15 fire department first quarter report.docx 

 
The CLVFD has added Firehall.net to our existing training programs which allows online 
tracking of practices and calls and will allow us to inventory equipment as we get more familiar 
with the program. 
 
The CLVFD updated the over 1400 BCAS codes in the system to better reflect the ones we 
respond to. 
 
The CLVFD is still awaiting the purchase and install of a Mobile CAD unit for Engine 1. 
 
The CLVFD welcomed Pivot Point Family Growth Centre Inc. for a tour of the fire hall in early 
March! 
 
The CLVFD had no fires of note this quarter.  
 

A very dry spring this season has resulted in a dry forest around Cultus Lake, please do your 
part to ensure campfires are completely extinguished before! 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
 
This report does not impact the Board’s Strategic Plan Initiative. 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Prepared by:  Approved for submission to the Board: 

      
__________________________________ ______________________________ 
Warren Mazuren  Bonny Bryant  
Fire Chief  Chief Administrative Officer  
 
 

094



095



096



097



098



099



100



101



102



103



104



 
 

 
 

CULTUS LAKE PARK 
 

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD 
 
DATE: May 15, 2019     FILE:  0550  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Holman 
 Special Events Coordinator 
 
SUBJECT: Lions Cultus Lake Pike Minnow Derby 
 
 
PURPOSE:  
 
This purpose of the report is to provide the Board with information pertaining to the upcoming annual 
Lions Cultus Lake Pike Minnow Derby Special Event application on June 15, 2019. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board waive the parking fees for Parking Lot A for any Lions Cultus Lake 
Pike Minnow Derby participant for the entire day if they park in the lot prior to 9:00 a.m. on June 15, 
2019; 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board permit one small van to park and camp on Main Beach on the sand 
near Gazebo B from 9 p.m. on June 14, 2019 to 5 a.m. on June 15, 2019 for security purposes; 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board permits the Lions Cultus Lake Pike Minnow Derby to operate a 
concession stand/area at Main Beach on June 15, 2019. 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Lions Cultus Lake Pike Minnow Derby Special Event organizers are applying for Special Event 
approval for June 15, 2019. This is an annual fishing derby at Cultus Lake that removes pike minnows 
from the lake. The estimated number of participants is 400 with approximately 25 volunteers. 
  
As the Lions Club is a not-for-profit organization and, according to the event organizer, this fishing 
derby helps the sockeye salmon population (by reducing the pike minnow population), they are 
requesting that parking fees for participants arriving before 9 a.m. and staying for the day be waived – 
as in previous years. According to the organizer, the Province waives all fishing licenses on Father’s 
Day weekend (the weekend of this event). This event allows people the opportunity to come to Cultus 
Lake Park and try fishing without it costing them for a license or parking and perhaps get them 
“hooked” on fishing at Cultus Lake in the future. 
 
The event organizers have been permitted to park one vehicle at Main Beach for security purposes in 
previous years. Organizers are asking for approval for this again this year as they will start to set up 
their event on Friday, June 14, 2019 at noon with five 20’ x 20’ tents and would like to have their own 
security to ensure no damage is caused to them.  
 

105



 

  

2 
The event organizers have requested approval to set up their own concession stand/area to serve 
lunch as they have done in past years. They have BBQs donated for use. The owner of Main Beach 
Boat Rentals & Concession has been consulted by Special Event Coordinator Paul Holman and is in 
support of this concession stand/area. The Lions are a non-profit organization and the funds from the 
concession stand/area will go towards the Cultus Lake Aquatic Stewardship Strategy booklet that 
provides knowledge on Cultus Lake and best practices at the lake. The plans for the concession 
stand/area are to sell coffee, hot dogs and potentially hamburgers. Event participants and the public 
will be able to purchase from this concession. 
  
The organizers are required to pay the application fee of $100, rental fees of $500, rental fee of $100 
for the early set up of their tents, a $100 food vendor fee, and a $1,000 security deposit. 
 
The organizers must provide comprehensive general liability insurance of not less than $5,000,000 at 
least five days prior to the event. 
  
The organizers are required to provide a permit from Fraser Health for their concession. 
  
During the event, the Park provides access to all three gazebos and washroom maintenance. The 
event organizers are committed to first aid services and will be taking care of their own garbage 
removal. There will be no road closures or beverage garden planned for this event.  
 
Staff recommends that this event be approved for 2019. 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  
 
This report does not impact the Cultus Lake Park Board’s Strategic Plan Initiative. 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Prepared by:  Approved for submission to the Board: 

     
__________________________   __________________________ 
Paul Holman  Bonny Bryant 
Special Events Coordinator  Chief Administrative Officer 
 

106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114


	6a 2019 04 17 Regular Minutes
	6b 2019 04 25 Special Electronic Regular Meeting Minutes
	7a 2019 05 15  Operational and Financial Core Review Comm march 27 minutes
	7b 2019 05 15 Operational and Financial Core Review Comm April 30
	8a 2019 05 15 2018 Financial Statements
	9a 2019 05 15 Change to the Park Act letter
	9b 2019 05 15  Parmenter sign letter
	9c Email re CLASS
	9di 2019 05 15 Area H Information Sheet1
	9dii 2019 05 15 Banner Ad - Area H OCP Amendment2
	9e 2019 05 15 FVRD Wood Stove Exchange
	10a 2019 05 15 First Quater Financial Report
	10b 2019 05 15 2019 Lions parking First Quarter Report
	10c 2019 05 15 Public Works First Quarter Report
	10d 2019 05 15 Campground and Cabins Report
	10e 2019 Bylaw Compliance and Enforcment First Quarter Report
	10f 2019 05 15 Fire Department First Quarter Report
	10g 2019 05 15 Lease Assignment Report
	11a 2019 05 15 Paddling Parking Report
	11b 2019 05 15 CL Communiyt School Grade 4 event
	11c 2019 05 15 Lions CL Pike Minnow Derby
	11d 2019 05 15 CL Community School Beach Day
	11e 2019 05 15 Cultus Lake Day
	12a 2019 05 15 Recommendatiosn from teh Operational and Fincial Core Review Comm
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



